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TREASURER’S REPORT
A ERE

| have pleasure in presenting the financial report of
Lingnan University for the year ended 30 June 2021:

Overview

The financial year under review was the second
year of the 2019-2022 funding triennium of
the University Grants Committee (“UGC”). The
University continued to excel in the provision of
quality education to the Hong Kong society. The
Times Higher Education Impact Rankings 2021 has
ranked Lingnan University third globally for “Quality
Education”, one of the top three in two consecutive
years. The University’s success in providing quality
education and outstanding learning experience to
students is well recognized and appreciated by the
international community.

The University achieved remarkable improvement
in the results of the Research Assessment Exercise
(RAE) 2020. As compared with the results of the last
RAE in 2014, Lingnan scholars have achieved much
better ratings for their research outputs, which have
reached international standards in most areas. For
social work and social policy, 54% research outputs
were rated “world leading” (4-star) or “internationally
excellent” (3-star), the highestamong all UGC-funded
universities, while accountancy came second with
65% research outputs at 4-star or 3-star. In terms
of research impact, more than half of the impact
cases submitted by the University were rated 4-star
or 3-star.

Overall Operating Results and Financial
Position

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the University
recorded a total income of $1,082.2 million (2019/20:
$1,236.1 million), a decrease of $153.9 million
or 12%. The overall decrease in income was
mainly contributed by the decline in Donation and
Benefactions of $155.7 million or 76%, which in turn
led to a substantial reduction in Matching/Research
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Matching Grant, causing a drop in Government
Subvention of $120.4 million or 19%. Benefited
from the market expectation on the post-pandemic
recovery, the decrease in income was partly offset
by an increase in Interest and Investment Income of
$114.1 million or 616%.

On the expenditure side, the University recorded a
decrease of $24.3 million or 2% (2020/21: $951.6
million, 2019/20: $975.9 million).

As at 30 June 2021, the net assets of the University
stood at $1,941.4 million (2019/20: $1,810.3 million).

INCOME ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON OF INCOME DISTRIBUTIONS

BETWEEN 2020/2021 AND 2019/2020
2020/2021K2019/2020F E U A 2 L& &l
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COMPARISON OF EXPENDITURE DISTRIBUTIONS

BETWEEN 2020/2021 AND 2019/2020
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Results by Segments DEPEE
The University business can be broadly divided REEBERMDHBMADE  BNHESER
into two segments, namely UGC-Funded Activities SEBINIFREREREE 0 2020/21FER
and Non-UGC-Funded Activities, and their financial DEBEEEEIRFAT
results for 2020/21 are highlighted as follows:
o = 25 GAS
UGC-Funded Activities HEERE) 28
The income derived from and expenditure spent BEGEPRINURARRBI DB R
on UGC-Funded Activities were $682.5 million 6.825f 7T (2019/20 1 8.133f87L) R
(2019/20: $813.3 million) and $688.2 million 6.882f%JC (2019/20 1 7.1564%&7T) -
(2019/20: $715.6 million) respectively, accounting AR ARGE3% (2019/20 1 66%)
for 63% (2019/20: 66%) of the total income and KR m72% (2019/20 1 73%) -

72% (2019/20: 73%) of the total expenditure of the
University.




The decrease of $130.8 million income was
mainly due to the exhaustion of funding in the
Eighth Matching Grant Scheme, and the expected
significant slowdown in getting donations for the
First Research Matching Grant Scheme because
most donors might feel fatigue as they might have
been approached by more than one university in the
previous year.

The decrease of $27.4 million expenditure was
mainly attributable to lower staff cost under
Instruction and Research due to staff turnover and
a higher amount of central cost under Management
and General was re-charged in proportion to the
enrollment number from the UGC-funded Segment
to the Self-financed Programmes sub-segment.

Capital and Alterations, Additions & Improvements
(“AA&I”) Projects

During the year, the UGC approved three new AA&I
projects with a total value of $61.9 million (2019/20:
$87.8 million) for various campus improvement
works. Total expenditure on the Capital and AA&I
Projects during the year was $37.6 million (2019/20:
$50.6 million) with all projects spending within their
respective budgets.

Non-UGC-Funded Activities

Lingnan Institute of Further Education (“LIFE”)

In 2020/21, the LIFE’s associate degree
programmes had 225 (2019/20: 229) students
while its postgraduate diploma, degree, higher
diploma, diploma and diploma Yi Jin programmes
had a total of 876 (2019/20: 1,172) students. The
two most popular programmes remained to be the
Higher Diploma in Early Childhood Education which
had an intake of 149 (2019/20: 197), and the Higher
Diploma in Sports Coaching and Leadership which
had an intake of 88 (2019/20: 117).

Although LIFE recorded a drop in student number, it
managed to achieve a small surplus of $1.9 million
for the year (2019/20: $7.3 million). The total
income and expenditure of LIFE were $74.7 million
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(2019/20: $83.4 million) and $72.8 million (2019/20:
$76.2 million) respectively, accounting for 7% of the
total income and 8% of the total expenditure of the
University.

Self-financed Programmes

This sub-segment encompasses all the taught
postgraduate programmes and self-financed
undergraduate programmes of the University,
which had a total of 829 (2019/20: 714) full-
time-equivalent students. During the year, the
University introduced three Master’s programmes,
one Post-graduate Diploma programme and two
undergraduate programmes. In 2020/21, Master
of Accountancy was the most popular programme
with a student intake of 80 (2019/20: 64). The
Master of Science in Human Resource Management
and Organisational Behaviour continued to be the
second most popular programme with a student
intake of 76 (2019/20: 72). The income generated
by this sub-segment was $133.1 million (2019/20:
$111.9 million) and the expenditure incurred was
$102.5 million (2019/20: $86.5 million), accounting
for 12% of the total income and 11% of the total
expenditure of the University. This sub-segment
recorded a surplus of $30.6 million (2019/20:
$25.5 million) for the year.

Donations

Without the benefit of the Eighth Matching Grant
Scheme and the substantial slowdown of the
donations for the First Research Matching Grant
Scheme, the total income for the year recorded
under this sub-segment was $67.7 million
(2019/20: $185.7 million) while the amount utilized
during the year for supporting various activities
was $42.4 million (2019/20: $54.3 million). This
sub-segment recorded a surplus of $25.3 million
(2019/20: $131.3 million) for the year. The University
is very grateful to all the donors, which included
alumni, friends and various organizations for their
continued generous financial support.
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Other Activities

This sub-segment mainly consists of the student
hostels, investment activities of the non-UGC funds
and other ancillary services. In 2020/21, with the
expected post-pandemic recovery, the University
recorded an increase in investment income from
$21.8 million in 2019/20 to $106.5 million in
2020/21, an increase of $84.7 million or 389%.
With the assistance of an investment consultant, the
University appointed a new investment manager in
February 2021 with a mandate on absolute return,
instead of benchmark return, to further diversify
the investment risk. As at 30 June 2021, the
aggregate market value of the portfolios managed
by investment managers was $867.4 million
(2019/20: $743.8 million), representing an annual
return of 13.7% (2019/20: 2.7%). The market value
of the portfolio managed by the University on that
date was $153.2 million (2019/20: $148.7 million),
a return of 8.4% (2019/20: - 9.4%)).

Outlook

The University has started to formulate its strategic
plan for 2022-28. Riding on its success in the
provision of quality education, a strategic area on
“Optimizing Liberal Arts Education in the Digital
Era” has been suggested for leveraging Lingnan
as a leading liberal arts university to provide whole
person education to students through innovative
pedagogies in both face-to-face and online modes.

The improvement in the RAE 2020 results is truly
encouraging to the Lingnan Community as it is
an evidence to illustrate that Lingnanians could
overcome any challenges that they are facing. With
better RAE results, the University can expect to get
larger recurrent funding from the UGC in the next
two funding triennia, i.e. 2022-28, which will be
deployed to perform inspiring research with impact
to the society to prepare for achieving even better
results in RAE 2026.

The unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic has
trained the University to face adverse conditions
and to strengthen its determination in delivering the
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best education to students through face-to-face,
online or hybrid modes as evidence by the continual
improvement in the teaching infra-structure for
various modes. To maximize the benefit of liberal arts
education, the University will resume face-to-face
teaching in 2021/22.

The University will continue to contribute to Hong
Kong as a regional education hub through offering
quality education and impactful research to promote
the development of society.

Katherine Cheung Marn-kay

Treasurer
Hong Kong, 11 October 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE COUNCIL OF LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

(established under the Lingnan University Ordinance)

B B ERABEREGRE

(R IR SR KRR Pl 3L)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lingnan
University (the “University”) set out on pages 14
to 94, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement
of income and expenditure, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in fund balances and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the
University as at 30 June 2021, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Lingnan University Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the University
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Other information included in the
Financial Report

The Council of the University is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Financial Report,
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council of the
University for the financial statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Lingnan University
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council
is responsible for assessing the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Council of the University either intends
to liquidate the University or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Council of the University is assisted by the
Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities
for overseeing the University’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 20
of the Lingnan University Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policiesused and thereasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
Council of the University.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
University’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the University to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a KM RABZEZESRTER » RPAXRME

statement that we have complied with relevant FEEBBENEEEEEEER » I
ethical requirements regarding independence and to B BEE S EE R A ERME
communicate with them all relationships and other SMNEBERNEMEIE  DEEERN
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on IENT » BERE 2 S AR 1R B 48 i T £
our independence, and where applicable, actions EX B EE R B & FE A -

taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Ernst & Young LXK GRS 5T
Certified Public Accountants HEESETAD

Hong Kong BE

11 October 2021 2021108 11H
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

W BT 2021FE6 30 EE

Income
Government Subventions
Tuition, Programmes and

Other Fees
Interest and Investment Income
Donations and Benefactions
Auxiliary Services
Other Income

Expenditure

Learning and Research
Instruction and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support

Management and General

Premises and Related Expenses

Student and General Education
Services
Other Activities

Surplus for the Year

YA
BT HEh &
BE REXK
HtE
FERBREWRA
POt
HHEARTS
HAUgA

i

= IYSTE
HEBRHE
(BES-H
PR E R TR
H A2 MIAR T

B

BRI E
&R H
BER—MRHE

BR#%
HAtEEh

T EERER

11

2021
HK$ &
(Note HizE4)

528,642,660
349,294,842

132,566,925
48,624,324
17,072,615

5,970,372

2020
HK$ T
(Note HizF4)

648,944,397
328,716,341

18,512,998
204,312,195
29,300,330
6,265,072

1,082,171,738

1,236,051,333

463,292,134 466,265,074
35,904,334 37,171,842
50,551,006 51,174,807
55,941,172 55,458,855
97,735,257 98,363,816

151,892,551 156,565,883
93,058,163 107,754,044

3,267,563 3,188,448

951,642,180 975,942,769

130,529,558 260,108,564




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

2HN R E2021E6 830 EE

Notes 2021 2020
MisE HK$ &It HK$ &t
Restricted Funds Surplus SIREIE £ R 678,362 72,326,962
Other Funds Surplus HtESRER 129,851,196 187,781,602
Surplus for the Year TEERIF 130,529,558 260,108,564
Other Comprehensive Income &M AT ERY
which will not be reclassified to AR ROEMEE
the Statement of Income and Uz
Expenditure in Subsequent Periods
Changes in Fair Value of Equity FFAZENGSRZER 12 576,275 313,776
Investments Designated at Fair Value BRENAREE
through Other Comprehensive Income b
Other Comprehensive Income FEEHMEZ IS
for the year 576,275 313,776
Total Comprehensive Income FEEHEZEMIE
for the Year 131,105,833 260,422,340
Transfers to: HRE
Restricted Funds SRHEES 12 1,254,637 72,640,738
Other Funds HihE & 13 129,851,196 187,781,602
131,105,833 260,422,340
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021

BAFSRRER 202146 830H

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Right-of-use Assets

Equity Investments Designated at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive
Income

Prepayments

Current Assets

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments
and Deposits

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but
less than One Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accruals
Provision for Employee Benefits
Deferred Income

Lease Liabilities within One Year

Net Current Assets

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Provision for Employee Benefits

Loan Repayable after One Year

- Secured

Lease Liabilities More than One Year

Deferred Capital Fund

Net Assets

FERENEE

RE - KRR

EREEE

EEALUASEEEA
EHNRRZERIRE

FafTBRTX

REBEE

DlasfEEET AR %=

HWEMEE

FEURBRTR ~ FRATBRTX

Rigs

FEHBERX=EA
BREiR—FaEHR

(e

HERBEFEY

mEamE

FEMIRMKTARRE R

BE R i
EIEUTA

—FANEERE

FREBEE

BEERRBAE

ERERMR
B EnaF 5

—FREETEN

- B

RR—FRMHEEE

BESHAES

FEE

16

17

16

17

18 (a)

18 (b)

19
20
22
15

20
21

15

23

2021
HKS$ &It

1,195,178,358
345,603
7,442,120

3,192,620

2020
HKS$ &t

1,185,864,495
664,620
6,865,845

1,229,087

1,206,158,701

1,194,624,047

1,006,441,761

20,279,378

1,085,346,774

447,335,752

23,525,108

1,020,031,677

22,068,080 388,252,165
2,134,135,993 1,879,144,702
209,638,213 168,588,990
60,142,325 57,173,575
246,727,915 186,975,732
321,520 317,589
516,829,973 413,055,886

1,617,306,020

1,466,088,816

2,823,464,721 2,660,712,863
11,537,330 10,937,762
27,431,326 27,431,326
26,972 348,492
38,995,628 38,717,580
843,037,917 811,669,940

1,941,431,176

1,810,325,343




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2021
(Continued)

AR 2021468308 (4

I

)

\

Notes 2021 2020
MyEE HK$ #T HK$ A&7t
Operational Funds 2EEE
Restricted Funds ZIRFIE S 12 635,806,702 582,233,704
UGC Funds HEEES 13 343,241,932 367,529,996
Other Reserves Hihig s 13 962,382,542 860,561,643
Total Funds aEs 1,941,431,176 1,810,325,343
Andrew Yao Cho-fai, JP ki & Katherine Cheung Marn-kay Z S
Chairman of the Council KEEXE Treasurer B)JE&
Leonard Cheng Kwok-hon, JP ERE# lan Woo Chun-tung #A3RER
President & Comptroller #¥5E&
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

HEMBREE2021FE6830HEE

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus for the Year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, Plant and
Equipment
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets
Transfer to Deferred Capital Fund
Interest and Investment Income
Interest Expense in respect of Loan
Interest Expense in respect of Lease
Liabilities
Net Loss on Disposal of ltems of
Property, Plant and Equipment

Increase in Accounts Receivable,
Prepayments and Deposits
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for
Employee Benefits
Increase in Accounts Payable
and Accruals
Increase in Deferred Income
Cash Flows generated from Operations
Interest Element of Lease Liabilities

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of Investments
Purchases of ltems of
Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds from Disposal of Investments
Proceeds from Disposal of ltems of
Property, Plant and Equipment
Increase in Time Deposits
with Original Maturity of more than
Three Months but less than One Year
Interest Received
Dividend Received

BEEFHNRERE
AEERE
A
K& BEREMZ
e
FREEEZINE
EEREEEAES
FERZEBRA
BRI R H
HEaRENERTE
S
BEREHHR
BMIERFEE

IENNFEUSBRSR ~
FRfiRM IR E

ENCR D) R B iE ] i

IENNAE (T BRFR R
RIEEH
IENNEFEUTA
BESRERE
HERENHE

EEIHRFHERAE

RETHNRERE
BARE
BERER B RHEMIRE

HEREEMR
RERE MR
S IEEER
IEINREIHIH &
R=fERBERENR—FR
T BATF R
FRUA
34U ON

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities REEHNFRERHE

14

15

11
111

11.1

32

14

2021 2020
HK$ &t HK$ &t
130,529,558 260,108,564
66,570,367 73,225,431
319,017 321,018
31,367,977 589,478
(132,566,925) (18,512,998)
- 303,006
6,411 4,443
5,044,972 10,910,767
101,271,377 326,949,709
(1,364,893) (1,928,084)
3,568,318 (5,484,841)
41,049,223 14,211,376
59,752,183 24,760,223
204,276,208 358,508,383
(6,411) (4,443)
204,269,797 358,503,940

(442,927,891)
(80,952,202)

23,000

(65,315,097)

14,682,731
4,353,166

(81,091,756)

399,451,282
156,800

(378,507,265)

21,925,861
3,323,670

(570,136,293)

(34,741,408)




LINGNAN UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 (Continued)

RERBXREBE2021E6830BEE (&)

Notes 2021 2020
Byt HKS$ &It HKS$ &
Cash Flows from Financing Activities RIEEEINIRERE
Principal Repayment of Loan HEBHA® 32 - (6,857,834)
Principal Portion of Lease Payment HENHIAIEE 32 (317,589) (319,557)
Interest Paid FEZ 32 - (410,017)
Net Cash Outflow from Financing RERENFRE (317,589) (7,587,408)
Activities TRHE
Net (Decrease)/Increase in HERBRHREEEW (366,184,085) 316,175,124
Cash and Cash Equivalents () /18 ms8E
Cash and Cash Equivalents FMZRE 388,252,165 72,077,041
at the Beginning of the Year RIESEED
Cash and Cash Equivalents FER2HE 18 (b) 22,068,080 388,252,165
at the End of the Year BRBR&EEY
Analysis of the Balances of RERRELEEY
Cash and Cash Equivalents: HEeROH
Cash and Bank Balances & R IRITHEER 18 (b) 10,580,959 9,716,682
Non-pledged Time Deposits with FREEIR MR =EAE 18 (b) 11,487,121 378,535,483
Original Maturity of less than JEIEIREHAITE X
Three Months
22,068,080 388,252,165
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LINGNAN UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
BEEMEEIREE2021E6H0RERE

Restricted Funds

Other Funds

A EE

HK$ &7t
(Note Kiz¥13)

1,158,373,460

187,781,602

(118,063,423)

Total

it

HK$ #Jt
1,549,903,003

260,422,340

1,228,091,639

1,810,325,343

1,228,091,639

129,851,196

(52,318,361)

1,810,325,343

131,105,833

ZREER

HK$ &t

(Note Ktz¥12)

Balance as at 1.7.2019 1.7.2019 &85 391,529,543

Total Comprehensive AFEREE 72,640,738
Income for the Year gy

Inter-fund Transfer BEEER 118,063,423

Balance as at 30.6.2020 30.6.2020 #&% 582,233,704

Balance as at 1.7.2020 1.7.2020 #58R 582,233,704

Total Comprehensive AFEREE 1,254,637

Income for the Year gy
Inter-fund Transfer HEEx 52,318,361
Balance as at 30.6.2021 30.6.2021 #58% 635,806,702

1,305,624,474

1,941,431,176




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Es R AL

1.

General Information

Lingnan University, formerly Lingnan College,
is the only liberal arts university in the territory,
with the longest established tradition among
the local institutions of higher education.
The University was incorporated on 30 July
1999 following the enactment of the Lingnan
University Ordinance. Its history, however,
dates back to 1888, when its forerunner, the
prestigious Lingnan University in Guangzhou,
China, was founded.

Lingnan University is committed to the
provision of quality education distinguished
by the best liberal arts traditions. It adopts
a whole-person approach to education which
enables its students to think, judge, care and,
ultimately, act responsibly in the changing
circumstances of Hong Kong, the region and
the world.

The principal place of operation is Tuen Mun,
Hong Kong.

The University founded Lingnan Institute for
Sustainable Development Limited, a company
limited by guarantee without share capital, on
22 September 2020 to bid for the ex-North
Kowloon Magistracy Building from the
Government.

Particulars of the University’s subsidiary is as

1. —fE&ER

EmARE > BIRIsEmER  JyARHthE—
MERERE  RAMBEERKFP =
BIEA B - RER1999F7H308 K
BEmARBEFI ML - EES B
£18884F » TERELMWE/NERAEA
hva:=3:

SERAB SR S A RS G
EHE - KBL TRARE ) AK K
BRAMES B BE  RAER
A% WER R R B
TR -

REMERLEMRANEHBER -

FR20206F9 B 228 » SERRERILY &
MAFERRERBRAR  HEKRAK
ERBERAT - DERBUFHRKRILEN
BERHAIERKE -

ZNBARZFEBEMT :

follows:
Name Lingnan Institute for Sustainable Development Limited
C2p ] EMARERRBRBRAR
Place of incorporation/ registration and business Hong Kong
ROV PSS ek B
Percentage of equity interest attributable to the
University 100%
ARBEEERAER BT DL
Principal activity Education but was dormant during the year
FEXER BB EBEFRREED
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2.1

The results of the subsidiary have not
been consolidated into the University’s
financial statements, owing to the financial
insignificance to the University.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the accounting policies generally adopted
by higher educational institutions in Hong
Kong as expressed in the Statement of
Recommended Accounting Practice (“SORP”)
for University Grants Committee (“UGC”)
Funded Institutions in Hong Kong.

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except
for equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which have been measured at fair value,
and are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The University has adopted the following
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The nature and the impact of the revised
HKFRS are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide
a new definition of material. The new definition
states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial

2.1

2.2

R Lt B B8 7 ) 9 B 755 4R R K B A5 R 48
MHREBREMEMARE » REBEE
I BBRRILBARBINBE AT
B

i 1 2 5

REFBERRDREEBVYBRESE
A FEgrEALRE (UTHRER
"EBYBREED ) LRBBKRE
BEEDWEREGHMEINSFABHRR
HARFRMMEINEZ ST ER ARG
ATRAEE MRS

ZEVBRRDREELERAELER
8 EREERUASEES AZH RS
KB RENMUAREET AMBZE
NWEMEELUAREENE - FUHBR
KLUBHE 25 -

RERARFE 2 M HHENEREALL
TRETHEBYBREER

BAGTEAIE LTRSS
SEEET A
BEARCZESE

RETNEBYBREENZMEERY
Z/ainT :

BEAGF RS 1R LEB G ERES
REITARARER—AREHESE - &
FIEH - HER - BRI
Ef - ASEBANE - RABRNTHER
K EREABELUZEV BRI BER
FTERRYARRERFE  ZENNBE



2.3

statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.
clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the University.

The amendments

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The University has not applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, and
potentially relevant to the University’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7,HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 412

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the University
is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues
not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate
to be updated without adjusting the carrying

R ZFEBTEBFERMFBORNER
HMENREE » KFERBURRMTE KE
EME - ZF B L EKNARNRENTH
MR RRBEERERNERLE -

2.3 BIEMBEXRERZEEMHR
HEH

TR REEL R B R B R R AR B 2 ¥ 5] B
RIEEETNE BT HREER > S8 M-
M RAE RN R RE R -

EBMBREENFEIR EBGFHE
AIZE395% ~ BEMIEMEEAFET75
BB BEREENEIRLEBYHER
EER B 1658 ET A

M REAE R E - 2FEER

2018FEFE 20204 FE BN E
EBBREENE IR  EBYBER
EEREITE BBV BEREERE6
SREEM  BRRE S R E B G ERIE 4
SRIERTA’

" EAR202141 A1 AR R
FEHAME

LOERAR2022681 B1RR BN
FEHARE

BRBEMBARRKBZEBYBREE
Al E—FSERMT ¢

EREVBREEAER BREGE
RIZE395% ~ BEMBHRELEAETHE
EREVBRELENBIRENERBYHER
HEAFI6RETAEEBRRET A
REER 5 —EERAN R (T ERRF
R,) AR RBEEITAPRERE
BHEEVBRENHE - ZFH2HE
BRETAREBERENE > RFRY
THEENEBBEZANREREEEHR
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amount when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis
for determining the contractual cash flows
is economically equivalent to the previous
basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark
reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are
dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from
having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a
risk component. The relief allows an entity,
upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects
the RFR risk component to become separately
identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable
users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity’s financial instruments and risk
management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required
to restate the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the University’s financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
sets out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments
that are expected to be applicable to the
University are as follows:

ENEEETETEER  IEHNE
BRFREBEARKREE  AlRRSZE
FERENAREENEMEESIF
BEEEHNRSMENTEEELE L
LR BB ERINIRIEZLE o o
ZEB AT EREENEMRTE
BT EARATETEHRBEENBERT
FERNE HBEANIEE N H - BEH
A EANEARRSEIEEEES
B REERFIRN—RRERE
DIEt 2 REREPARBE o HmER
MEGIEERRBARKLED  ZFEFT
RKINERERERVERE A EEH
MNER - BEERATERETISETR
B 4 R B I A9 [ B AR Bk BB 0 TR R 2K
0EBR N BB EREAE N
HBERERER  BEEEREAER
BRIZRE © o - ZFBITARTAEE
BERARBERIIEN » DU BHRERN
FREENTY MBI REENEHWERN
SHIEREREBERENTE - ZF
BRI AR2021FE1 A1 BHUERBEN
FEPBAEN U TEMER  BE
BRAESIIHLBEER - HHZFEITA
AR AREB 2 EREREREME

=P
j(/?\ftzlo

2018FEE2020F v FEREHT B E
ISR EERE15: HEVBREE
BIZEOSE - BB M BME LD B 165N
Mo BRBEA U RE BT EREL
RIS - HEBEANAKREB BT
B -

-



e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies
the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the
borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first
applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment
is not expected to have a significant
impact on the University’s financial
statements.

e HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration
of payments from the lessor relating to
leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS
16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives
when applying HKFRS 16.

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the cost
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable

=

B BB E R N EE]T
THEEZGRRAETERERARR
TRBEZRAFERAMTAZE
- ZEEREERERARER
ARHAEXNHNEREZER - H
PREBRANERARNEKS—T
XN cER - BREHEERX
FERZETANFERESHEMIR
RIURENXR oM EE~E
RZBEA - ZBITAR20224F
TRTRAUKRIENEEHREL
M WARTFFIREEMR - HMZEBRT
ES SN RN AR T E S )
BAREE -

BBV BREENZIRE/MT

BBV BRELEREI65REE ¢
BRNREBYHEREERF165%ME
iz 13 EEBRAPEREHEA
REEVEEKBFER A REHR -
HEGHER Y BRE BT F R EER
B EREBEHERE T ZERE

B o
FEGHBR

RERFE - BMRIFE

Bed  RBREN (ERIBMRS) &
B (EH1E AT 8 R AT R E SR
o -

—ERE  RENBHCRAERE
BAE LAZEEEEAEHAR
BERILUER  EREERNEMN
DN

MRS~ RieMBEVMRBEEFREE
B PIIRBEREESHE  — R
NEEL B BURE AN FH A RER
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that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the University
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of a replaced
part is derecognized. All other repairs and
maintenance expenditures are recognized
as expenses in the statement of income and
expenditure during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction-in-progress, are depreciated
so as to write off their cost net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings, Structures and Fittings:

20 - 50 years

Leasehold Improvements:

7 years or term of lease, whichever is shorter
Furniture and Equipment:

3 -5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognized upon disposal or when no

future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal.

RFIST - HARIIAE  REXXHAE
H—IERE - K REMEEERRAT
WARZTAPARREEN SR BAVER - M
ZIEB AR A AT E - AIER
LELEXH @ (FRZAEEZRRINIAR
B HE/R—REE -

B&E ~ Riwhkat (EE2LRERN) R
EEHE A F R ER AT RITE LIS
HAEEERE - £HFH  BELK
TEREHENZEERERERERE
TRME LR WEEERFREE

BERFHOT

B&E -~ WENEERE

20E504F

b

HEEEAR :

\

TENHEFH  LBREERE

BRENSEM

3EHEE

W—IERE  KEEBEMNTEGES
ANEMERFR - BIZEEAAE - XL
AENER  2BRIESTES  mE
HEAMSERTRITE -

HEEMKROERNRERFARES
2 AEERRRBRZEHE AT WE S -

—IHRE - RELEM > RERER > %
Bt EGANEER » M AR
KOEA at - BNAEBRTESR -



The gain or loss on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sale proceeds and its carrying
amount, and is recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure on disposal.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Construction-in-progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for
use.

At the end of each reporting period, the
University reviews the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognized no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs to sell and value in
use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognized as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized
as income immediately.

The University assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
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contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

University as a lessee

The University applies a single recognition
and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases. The University
recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognized at
the commencement date of the lease
(that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Education Centre :

2 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers
to the University by the end of the lease
term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.
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(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognized at the
commencement date of the lease at
the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the University and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the University
exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the University uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.
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(c) Short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets

The University applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of education centre (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

University as a lessor

When the University acts as a lessor, it
classifies at lease inception (or when there is a
lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the University does not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When acontract
contains lease and non-lease components,
the University allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue
in the statement of income and expenditure
due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized
over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted
for as finance leases.
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Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial
recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
University’s business model for managing
them.  With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the
University has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the University initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component
or for which the University has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 July
2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified
and measured at amortized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding.

The University’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash
flows.  The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognized on the trade date,
that is, the date that the University commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (Debt
Instruments)

The University measures financial assets
at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

e Thefinancial assetisheld withinabusiness
model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized
in the statement of income and expenditure
when the asset is derecognized, modified or
impaired.

Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income (Equity
Investments)

Upon initial recognition, the University
can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
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investments as equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets
are never recycled to the statement of income
and expenditure. Dividends are recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the University and the
amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the University benefits
from such proceeds as arecovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income
are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss,
or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortized cost or at fair value through other

REHZBUWIFFHFESE  AIREAE
EAA RSB ERREDSERIEE
BRUAREBEEFAZEK SR B
BRE - A ENREBERTBEEEETE -

ZETHMEEC VR KERAGEN
SPAME R o BB AT BGRER -
RERA] g2 15 52 ik S AE B iz ACE A
mMk S EHEEH A EFERFNE
KPEBR/HEMUBA - M RENLZ
SRERERER KRS/ EE—
WA RARRERS > ERBERT  ZF
WaREMEEW R AR - BBE/
ARBEEFAZANGSRZERKRE
BAETRER M -

LA BEFT AR Sz REI 2B E

DAREBEFARIEZNESHREESR
ERFEESREE  NERERE
BE/BUASREBEFARZERZESH
BE AFZARNEESNECER
EE - HEMEECWBEMNANE
HAHEXRE R BRFEE
BE-MAETLR (BREIBERARNITE
IE) T2EAFEESE  BRIFEW
EEABEH M TAAF®R B
MEWLIFMBINARE R R
EE  ERFFEINNMAEIBRL
AFEEFABRZRLZREE - N
EH LA E SR A K U AR EER
A2EBHEDEEB LR ZFRE
HWEBILAERBERERFEE/UA
FEEFT AW S B8 H BR 30 R Rk 2
SEtEEFC  BEHETHEAIMLIEE -

2020/21 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT e Bi#53ReE 33

/4



comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces,
an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of income
and expenditure.

This category includes equity investments
which the University had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at
fair value profit or loss are also recognized
as other income in the statement of income
and expenditure when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the University and the
amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

The University derecognizes a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

The University recognizes an allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash

DASEBEF AR EZNSBMEER T
BRRKUAREEBI R AREEE
BB AN SR IER ©

R BRERECS A A REIZEZES AR
BLUASREESAZERGREDR
& o EXIREEL - HERSHEBENKE
MBRATEHFAAKRE » BRSNS
BRI ER  2EABBKR LA
REEIRNEBREECERRENK
BN S 3R AR s AR

EARTHEENARKRESRENEGL
EANERE NETBEECESERZ
INERMREDRER - KRERRERTE
RZEATHEE °

ERBEGHIPENEEEMAER - BEE
@b BIEREDERTHER

REHIFLIAFE BT AW KZAT
BEFATIEERRMEMERER - H
HMERBRDLDERREGNEIH AL
RBeRneRlRBRMWBCMERESM
BBz EZBMEE @ WIARERR X
ZIPERR - MRS RERSBRE



flows that the University expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General Approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the University
assesses wWhether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the University compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The University considers a financial asset
in default when contractual payments are
1 year past due. However, in certain cases,
the University may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the University is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the University.
A financial asset is written off when there is
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no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified Approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or when
the University applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the University applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the University
does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognizes a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The University has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The University’s financial liabilities include
accounts and other payables, the amount due
to UGC and secured loans payable.

Subsequent Measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
including accounts payables and accruals,
the amount due to UGC and secured loans
payable are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost,
using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of income and expenditure when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the amortization process.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a financial
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asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of
income and expenditure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and
demand deposits with bank. Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at bank, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the University
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
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as a result of a past event, which will probably
result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognized when control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
University expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees
Revenue from the provision of programmes
is recognized over the scheduled period on
a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the University.

Residence Halls Fee

Residence halls fee are recognized when
the services are rendered.

Chinese Medicine Clinic Fee

Chinese medicine clinic fee are recognized
when the services are rendered.
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Block Grants and Non-accountable
Supplementary Grants

Block grants and non-accountable
supplementarygrantsfromUGC arerecognized
as income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred plus any such other
grants, which are received in excess of the
related expenses incurred, but transferred to
General and Development Reserve Fund in
the reporting period. Subventions received
before the occurrence of the related revenue
and capital expenditure and are in excess of
the transfers to General and Development
Reserve Fund are recognized as Deferred
Income.

Other Subventions

Other subventions, which are earmarked
for specific purposes, are recognized as
income to the extent of the related revenue
expenditure incurred in the reporting period.
Subventions received before the occurrence
of the related revenue and capital expenditure
are recognized as Deferred Income.

Subventions Spent on Capital Expenditure

Subventions spent on capital expenditure
are treated as Deferred Capital Fund and
recognized as income over the useful lives of
the related assets when the assets are put into
use, to the extent of the related depreciation
incurred for that period.

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis
on the principal outstanding at the applicable
interest rate.

Donations

Donations designated for financing capital

expenditure are treated as Deferred Income
when received; any amount spent on capital
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expenditure is transferred to Deferred Capital
Fund and recognized as income over the
useful lives of the related assets when the
assets are put in use, to the extent of the
related depreciation incurred for that period.

Other donations in cash of which the unspent
balance need not be refunded are recognized
as income when received or receivable from
the donors.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the right
to receive payment has been established.

Rental Income

Rental income is recognized on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a
payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the University transfers the related goods or
delivers the services. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the University
transfers the control of the related goods or
services to the customer.

Employee Benefits

Employee Leave Pay

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognized when they accrue to the
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Mandatory Provident Fund

The University operates a defined contribution
Mandatory  Provident Fund retirement
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benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for its employees. Contributions
are made based on percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of income and expenditure
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the University in an independently
administered fund. The University’s employer
mandatory contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, while voluntary contributions vest
with them according to the vesting schedule
of the Scheme.

The University determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial
statements of the University are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded
using the exchange rates ruling at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. All differences
are taken to the statement of income and
expenditure. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Endowment Donations

Endowment Donations represent donations
which are being held intact in perpetuity and
only the interest income therefrom can be
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utilized for the general development of the
University and designated purposes.

General and Development Reserve Fund

General and Development Reserve Fund
(“GDRF”) represents unspent funds of UGC
recurrent grants from one funding period
(usually a triennium) to the next. The balance
of GDRF at the end of a funding period which
can be carried over to the next funding period
should not exceed 20% of the University’s
approved recurrent grants for that funding
period. Should the balance of the GDRF at
the end of a funding period exceed the ceiling
allowed for that funding period, the excess
should be transferred to Amount Refundable
of Unspent Recurrent Grants in the account
of Amount Due to UGC pending the recovery
by the UGC.

Operations Reserves
Operations Reserves comprise the funds
generated from the self-financing programmes

and projects of the University.

Deferred Capital Fund

Deferred Capital Fund represents the
Government subventions and campus
development donations spent in the purchase
of property, plant and equipment or capital
projects which are subject to depreciation.
Deferred Capital Fund will be reduced to the
same extent as and when the depreciation
of the related property, plant and equipment
is charged to the statement of income and
expenditure.

Deferred Income

Funds earmarked for specific purposes,
of which the unspent balance should be
refunded, including Government subventions,
donations and benefactions, and interest and
investment income arising from these funds,
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are not recorded as income if the related
expenditure has not yet been incurred during
the year. Funds of such nature received but
not yet recognized in the statement of income
and expenditure are recorded as Deferred
Income.

The various restricted and other funds of
the University represent the accumulated
unspent balance of subventions, fees income,
donations, investment income, income
generated from self-financing activities and
other designated funds. These funds are
managed according to the relevant grant
and funding conditions, where applicable,
and the University’s investment and financial
management guidelines and procedures. The
objective is to safeguard the University’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
optimal reserves to provide tertiary education
and to support the future development of the
University.

The University manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments in accordance with
changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. During the
year ended 30 June 2021, the University’s
overall capital management policy remained
unchanged from prior years.
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5. Government Subventions

B fEBY &

Subventions from UGC
Block Grants
Non-accountable Supplementary Grants
Supplementary Adjustments
Matching Grants

Research Matching Grants

Earmarked Grants

Research

Housing-related Expenses other than
Home Financing Scheme (“HFS”)

Knowledge Transfer

Funding Scheme for Teaching and
Learning Related Proposals

Targeted Taught Postgraduate
Programmes Fellowships Scheme

Enhancing Campus Security

Government’s Job Creation Scheme
under Anti-epidemic Fund 2.0

Others

Rates and Government Rent Refunded

Capital Grants and AA&I Block Allocation

Grants from Government Agencies
Rates and Government Rent Refunded
Others

HEEWHBE
BREpE
RIFZT KL HEE &
g e £ R
[RESEEer
MERLHHEE

EERE#EE
HE
[EFr&EBhET &I LM ERE
BERHEEE
FHEERS
HIREFE BT E

EEMFRIERRTEE
BEErE

RAREMRR

B E iz
B2 - BIEHAETE

At

7= R st R R

B MEME

KelE T2 R

EHWABFIMEE
= B R R R
At

2021 2020
HK$ &t HK$ &t
428,895,637 414,519,693
20,980,000 20,883,000
- 72,847,430
4,204,547 59,570,605
454,080,184 567,820,728
6,333,414 4,747,419
887,739 1,380,324
1,402,071 1,074,444
735,317 1,189,164
1,418,800 -
4,594,890 17,860
1,758,666 -
1,404,299 368,593
18,535,196 8,777,804
7,875,840 7,989,240
37,628,230 50,637,798
518,119,450 635,225,570
865,600 899,000
9,657,610 12,819,827
10,523,210 13,718,827
528,642,660 648,944,397
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6. Tuition, Programmes and Other Fees

28 RERHEMNE

UGC-Funded Programmes HESTEER
Tuition Fees B2E

Programme and Other Fees FRERHEMINE
Non UGC-Funded Programmes IEHE T EEERR
Tuition Fees 2E

Programme and Other Income FRERHEMUITA

Notes:

1. During the year, tuition, programmes and other fees
were recognized when the services were rendered over
time, i.e. the performance obligations were satisfied.
Payments were generally due before the commencement
of the terms/courses. The University’s geographical market
was in Hong Kong.

2. During the year, the amount of tuition, programmes
and other fees recognized, that had been included
in contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period, was HK$49.90 million (2020: HK$55.49 million).

2021 2020

HKS 585 HKS 57T
141,337,201 131,674,482
3,562,343 2,251,209
144,899,544 133,925,691
198,111,298 187,310,041
6,284,000 7,480,609
204,395,298 194,790,650
349,294,842 328,716,341

GEX
1LER  RBRBEBERBOEE (DHET AN
HE) SRREH RENLLEA LA
ERIEEE/ RRABHXN - ABHESTBE

BB -

2R RBERTA, 90BEBTMEE - RER

HiblgE (2020 : 5, 5498#7T) » MItELEEEE
ANEAIRNEHNEE -


https://HK$55.49
https://HK$49.90

7. Interest and Investment Income

FMERFKERA

2021 2020
HKS$ &t HK$ &It
Interest Income F B A 11,363,961 22,707,882
Dividend Income B BT A 4,417,466 3,335,835
Net Realized and Unrealized Gain/ LIARBEETAWNEZ R 116,785,498 (7,530,719)
(Loss) on Financial Assets at Fair HEemEEZERREE
Value through Profit or Loss BIRABUIE/ (B518)
132,566,925 18,512,998
8. Donations and Benefactions
BRI
2021 2020
HKS &t HKS &t
Capital Projects (Note) EZIEH (FiEE) 5,788,891 7,862,391
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries FEL SR EIES 10,484,345 13,879,583
Donations for Research Activities (Note) BBNRR RS (BFTEE) 25,268,509 91,991,724
Others (Note) HAth (FF5E) 7,082,579 90,578,497
48,624,324 204,312,195

Note:

During the year, the cash donation received from the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust was HK$31.04
million (2020: HK$24.98 million) and from the Jean C
K Ho Family Foundation was HK$Nil (2020: HK$0.34
million).

MEsE -
AEEELEECEEEAESHNRSERA
3, 1048 7T (2020 @ 2, 498870 ) RASBRK
HESMBEAASEIT (2020 : 348%ETT) °
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9. Auxiliary Services

& B AR 75

Residence Halls B

Car Park SHEG
Catering Services EERTE
Rental Income HEUA
Rental Contribution from Staff A EHS
Sports Complex EERE
Chinese Medicine Clinic rhBE2 R

Notes:

1. During the year, residence halls income was recognized
when the services were rendered over time, i.e. the

performance obligations

satisfied. Payments

were generally due before the commencement of the
terms. Chinese medicine clinic income was collected

2021 2020
HK$ &t HK$ &7t
15,464,177 27,325,914
282,058 524,348
18,952 200,000
597,800 539,788
328,937 572,960
41,886 137,320
338,805 -
17,072,615 29,300,330

st -

1. &R REBRRIEMRBNER (BRETEQ
BE) ZEBESWRA - LERBEEZ2HHAN
BISAY - REEZ ATUR AT IR AE7A B Ak 7% By LU K%

BR - RENEIEHSEEE -

and recognized at a point in time after the services were
rendered. The University’s geographical market was in
Hong Kong.

. During the year, the amount residence halls income
recognized, that had been included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period was HK$1.38
million (2020: HK$2.49 million).

10. Other Income

E A

2R REBERTIISEBETNBES KA
(2020 : 2498%7T) @ MitSBEFAFINE
Hnals -

Contract Research WEMRE
Survey and Service Income BERRFEIRA
Miscellaneous HIRWA

50

2021 2020
HK$ &t HKS$ T
4,015,229 4,677,018
1,514,900 921,376

440,243 666,678
5,970,372 6,265,072




11.
Sz

Learning and Research
Instruction and Research

Library

Central Computing
Facilities

Other Academic
Services

Institutional Support
Management and
General
Premises and
Related Expenses
Student and General
Education Services
Other Activities

Expenditure

BiuR R
HERME
B
FROEE RS
a1
H B4
B 7%

ez
BB
—MEZiE
REXK
MERAsZ
BER—i
HERTE
H &g

Total Expenditure 2020/2021

2020/2021 FEHBZ H

Total Expenditure 2019/2020

2019/2020 FEiE% H

Staff Costs Operating
and Benefits Expenses 2021 2020
LS #3& Depreciation Total Total
FrifinE R % i e &gt &3
HK$ #&JT HK$ &t HKS$ &7t HKS$ &7 HK$ &It
410,192,071 49,795,623 3,304,440 463,292,134 466,265,074
17,988,096 17,745,666 170,572 35,904,334 37,171,842
29,203,676 15,715,718 5,631,612 50,551,006 51,174,807
48,618,470 7,201,989 120,713 55,941,172 55,458,855
506,002,313 90,458,996 9,227,337 605,688,646 610,070,578
80,220,337 17,373,161 141,759 97,735,257 98,363,816
10,355,445 85,597,099 55,940,007 151,892,551 156,565,883
35,297,256 57,150,696 610,211 93,058,163 107,754,044
1,037,667 1,578,843 651,053 3,267,563 3,188,448
126,910,705 161,699,799 57,343,030 345,953,534 365,872,191
(Note BftzE11.1)
632,913,018 252,158,795 66,570,367 951,642,180
(Note Fftz¥11.2)
637,563,249 265,154,089 73,225,431

(Note ff5¥11.2)

975,942,769
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11.1  Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses
B EEEZ LS

Management and General
Auditor’s Remuneration
Furniture and Equipment
Insurance - General
Legal and Professional Fees
Office and Publicity Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance
Staff Recruitment
Staff Development and Training

Interest Expense in respect of Loan

Premises and Related Expenses
Furniture and Equipment
Government Rent and Rates
Insurance - Property
Minor Works
Legal and Professional Fees
Office Expenses
Premises and Facility Rental
Repairs and Maintenance
Utilities, Cleaning, Communication,
Security and Management
Services

Net Loss on Disposal of Property,
Plant & Equipment

Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets

Interest Expense in respect of

Lease Liabilities

EER—MTE
R EEMEN =
EE KM
— A% (RE%
ARRBERBEH
WMAEREFEH
HIERGEE
BT3RES
BT
ERAVERAF B 32

REREMZH
EER KM
BUS tthiH K= Al
BERRR
/NERTAE
FRRBERBER
WMAETH
B& RahEHE
HIERGERE
AR FR
B~ R RETE
BR ¥
RERE X MR
JRH TR
EREEEZIE
HEBERERT S
% W

2021 2020
HKS$ &t HK$ &t
607,000 570,000
311,224 234,300
1,271,639 1,324,205
590,828 1,063,300
11,765,699 11,920,253
1,165,446 1,512,284
1,066,713 1,960,054
594,612 283,920

- 303,006
17,373,161 19,171,322
1,862,186 1,541,317
8,741,440 8,888,240
2,152,298 1,216,726
2,214,646 2,330,282
1,176,507 519,147
198,341 214,065
1,653,358 825,556
12,833,706 15,900,562
49,394,217 41,334,255
5,044,972 10,910,767
319,017 321,018
6,411 4,443
85,597,099 84,006,378




11.1  Analysis of Institutional Support Operating Expenses (continued)

WIBIREEHA (1&)

Student and General Education Services

Ceremonies, Assembly and Promotions

Careers and Counselling Services

Furniture and Equipment

Student Exchange

Office Expenses

Residence Hall Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance

Student Activities, Study Tour and
Grants to Student Societies

Sports Facilities

Scholarship and Financial Aid

Staff Development and Training

Student Medical and Dental Scheme

Other Activities
Auditorium Operations
Catering Services
Survey and Service

Transportation Service

B4 R—BBFTRHE
HiE - EERIHEE
KR RRTS
RE K=t
BEZR
WAZESTH
BEXH
HIERRFRE
BAEE) - BEER

EppBL gt
EEEaIE
BEERMHER
BT
BEEBRRIFHREEE

H it EE
AEELEE
BERARTE
RERRTS
EERTE

11.2 Analysis of Staff Costs and Benefits

U 8 FEnEF) 2 A

Salaries and Wages
Gratuities

MPF Contributions
Other Benefits

FERIE
HO B &=
RSN
H g+
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2021 2020
HK$ #JT HK$ &t
3,038,799 2,075,904

416,266 422,997
167,099 114,093
78,128 4,682,031
182,597 1,462,468
23,779,774 32,101,851
1,558,429 1,562,950
5,452,041 4,208,080
965,649 901,457
19,983,952 22,735,124
52,650 18,227
1,475,312 1,562,276
57,150,696 71,847,458

- 26,000

1,305,143 1,099,961
212,150 247,725
61,550 72,835
1,578,843 1,446,521
161,699,799 176,471,679
2021 2020

HK$ &It HKS$ &It
543,474,451 545,679,016
39,303,932 40,477,914
25,117,190 24,440,474
25,017,445 26,965,845
632,913,018 637,563,249
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12. Restricted Funds
ZREIEE

Balance as at 1.7.2019 #4584

Transfer from Statement of
Comprehensive Income

LS ERTS

Inter-fund Transfer

=S XELY

Balance as at 30.6.2020 #5&5

Balance as at 1.7.2020 #5585

Transfer from/(to) Statement of
Comprehensive Income

BE/(E)zEKRE

Inter-fund Transfer

- XELY

Balance as at 30.6.2021 #5&5

Investment Designated Funds
Revaluation ETHEES

Endowment Reserve Donations/ Endowment
Donations e Funds Funds Total
BAREE EREYEA B/ EE BERESE &t
HK$ #ET HKS$ &7t HKS$ &7t HKS$ &7t HK$ A&7t
107,908,621 6,551,569 248,141,595 28,927,758 391,529,543
26,300,000 313,776 46,026,962 - 72,640,738
(1,775,682) - 114,839,105 5,000,000 118,063,423
132,432,939 6,865,345 409,007,662 33,927,758 582,233,704
132,432,939 6,865,345 409,007,662 33,927,758 582,233,704
2,500,000 576,275 (1,821,638) - 1,254,637
(80,000) - 52,398,361 - 52,318,361
134,852,939 7,441,620 459,584,385 33,927,758 635,806,702




13. Other Funds
HttEE
UGC Funds Other Reserves
YESHESE Hithf
Unallocated
Research Non-
Generaland  Unallocated Matching Designated
Development Matching Grants Operations Donations and
Reserve Fund Grants RHOEAE Reserves Benefactions
—MRER ROEHAE AL &8 JEEEhRE Total
fmEE mHEEHE A fEfE B REERS st
HK$ &7t HK$ Bt HKS &t HK$ BT HKS$ B HK$ T
Balance as at 1.7.2019 213,184,939 171,609,451 - 602,471,740 171,107,330 1,158,373,460
HEER
Transfer from/(to) (43,773,945) 73,454,906 59,779,868 41,840,993 56,479,780 187,781,602
Statement of
Comprehensive
Income
B/ E)ZHEINER
Inter-fund Transfer 15,806,311 (71,492,634) (51,038,900) (7,626,922)  (3,711,278) (118,063,423)
E&EK
Balance as at 30.6.2020 185,217,305 173,571,723 8,740,968 636,685,811 223,875,832 1,228,091,639
HEER
Balance as at 1.7.2020 185,217,305 173,571,723 8,740,968 636,685,811 223,875,832 1,228,091,639
FEER
Transfer from 4,561,053 237,975 4,227,776 115,202,858 5,621,534 129,851,196
Statement of
Comprehensive
Income
EEEENEER
Inter-fund Transfer 4,740,265 (25,318,881) (12,736,252) 3,697,691 (22,701,184) (52,318,361)
HEHEER
Balance as at 30.6.2021 194,518,623 148,490,817 232,492 755,586,360 206,796,182 1,305,624,474
#5ER

As at 30 June 2021, the total balance of UGC Funds
derived from General and Development Reserve
Fund, Unallocated Matching Grants and Unallocated
Research Matching Grants was HK$343.2 million
(2020: HK$367.5 million).

As at 30 June 2021, the total balance of Other
Reserves derived from Operations Reserves and
Non-Designated Donations and Benefactions was
HK$962.4 million (2020: HK$860.6 million).

R2021%F6HA30H H—REABREMREES
EERAERABRENEHSERCHESE
SRR, 43285t (2020 : 3. 6751%
BIL) °

2021468308 » HEBEFKENMIERERS
B BB AR Y E M AR A4S R 0. 62418
ST (2020 : 8. 60BEHTT)
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14.
& ~ ki

Cost R4~

At 1 July 2020 52202057 A1 H
Additions FEE

Disposals ZE

Transfers 543

At 30 June 2021 42021 H6 A30H

Accumulated Depreciation 2RFTE
At 1 July 2020 $42020%F7 A1 H
Depreciation Provided

during the Year
AERNEHRIE
Disposals EE

At 30 June 2021 522021 F6H30H

Cost g4

At 1 July 2019 5420197 B1H
Additions fEE

Disposals &

Transfers #5135

At 30 June 2020 %$2020F6 H30H
Accumulated Depreciation RiEFHTHE
At 1 July 2019 $42019%7A1H
Depreciation Provided

during the Year
AERNGHRITE

Disposals [2E

At 30 June 2020 $4202056 A30H

At 30 June 2021 582021 6 530 H

At 30 June 2020 5820206 530 H

Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings,
Structures & Leasehold
Fittings Improvements Construction- Furniture &
REIBER FHASE&EE in-Progress Equipment Total
ElE ST WMRIE EETIRE ZFEERM #aEt
HK$ &t HKS$ it HKS #it HK$ &7t HK$ #it
1,659,834,129 336,694,916 29,329,261 155,435,105 2,181,293,411
7,337,551 2,883,593 54,942,722 15,788,336 80,952,202
(12,108,922) - - (4,930,982) (17,039,904)
47,666,568 - (47,666,568) - -
1,702,729,326 339,578,509 36,605,415 166,292,459 2,245,205,709
561,782,380 297,090,203 - 136,556,333 995,428,916
39,015,952 13,489,530 - 14,064,885 66,570,367
(7,040,950) - - (4,930,982) (11,971,932)
593,757,382 310,579,733 - 145,690,236 1,050,027,351
1,635,736,879 322,786,887 26,830,847 156,773,317 2,142,127,930
8,309,601 13,908,029 39,157,378 19,716,748 81,091,756
(20,871,315) - - (21,054,960) (41,926,275)
36,658,964 - (36,658,964) - -
1,659,834,129 336,694,916 29,329,261 155,435,105 2,181,293,411
534,762,281 275,295,431 - 143,004,481 953,062,193
36,823,847 21,794,772 - 14,606,812 73,225,431
(9,803,748) - - (21,054,960) (30,858,708)
561,782,380 297,090,203 - 136,556,333 995,428,916
1,108,971,944 28,998,776 36,605,415 20,602,223 1,195,178,358
1,098,051,749 39,604,713 29,329,261 18,878,772 1,185,864,495




15. Leases
HE

The Lingnan Institute of Further Education of the
University holds a lease in respect of an education
centre for hosting its programmes. The term of
the lease was two years without extension option.
The lease consists of a fixed monthly payment
throughout the lease term and a variable payment in
accordance with the actual number of classrooms
and hours consumed by the University.

(a) Right-of-use Assets

The carrying amounts of the University’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as
follows:

As at 1 July H7HA1H
Lease Modification HEgE
Depreciation e

As at 30 June 768308

EMAEFEEBEERREERREFE —
BERLEYN  HEMAME  BEHEE
- REEAONBEESS » REAEEEE
HAEAXN —BEESBMAEE - THFEE
DRARBREBERERNBEHEN R IR
XAq e

(a) EREERE

KEE
R

EHEEECKRASENEEE

Education Centre and Total

HER LR
2021 2020
HK$ &t HKS$ &It
664,620 348,492
- 637,146
(319,017) (321,018)
345,603 664,620
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15. Leases (continued)

HE (i)

(b) Lease Liabilities

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 July
Lease Modification
Accretion of Interest recognized during the year

Payments
As at 30 June
Analysed into:

Current Portion
Non-current Portion

(b) HERE

R

R7R18

HE#E

AEEF BRI
CEN

H6H830H
P

ARENERD
FFRENER 1S

2021
HK$ T

666,081

6,411
(324,000)

348,492

321,520
26,972

AEE HEEECRASELHEEZE

2020
HKS$ &t

348,492
637,146
4,443
(324,000)

666,081

317,589
348,492



15. Leases (continued)
HE (#8)

(c) Amounts recognized in Income and Expenditure

in relation to Leases

Interest Expense in respect
of Lease Liabilities
Depreciation of Right-of-use Assets
Variable Lease Payments not
included in the Measurement
of Lease Liabilities (included in
Expenditure)

Total Amount recognized in Income

and Expenditure

(d) Variable Lease Payments

(c) MERAME ERER NI R 28

2021
HKS$ &7t
HEaENERF ESZH 6,411
EREEEZIE 319,017
RETEHEEERESE 548,743
BEMTERETR
(BERIZHA)

BRI RZEEEE 874,171

The University’s variable and fixed lease payments

are set out below:

As at 30 June
#6H30H

Fixed Payments

Variable Payments

EREE
FENTRR

(d) ATEAER

2020
HKS$ #JT

4,443

321,018
607,550

933,011

RERFBNEEHEMFEINT

2021
HK$ &t

324,000
548,743

872,743

2020
HK$ &7t

324,000
607,550

931,550

2020/21 LINGNAN UNIVERSITY FINANCIAL REPORT e Bi#53ReE 59

——d



60

16. Investments

®E

Equity Investments Designated
at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Unlisted Equity Investments

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss
Listed Equity Investments in Hong Kong
Listed Investment Funds

Unlisted Investment Funds

EERLUAREBERA
EHERTRZER
RE
FFLmiERIRE

DasfEEst Al &
HWEMEE
LhgERiRE &8
EHEERE
FLEHmESRE

The fair value hierarchy of the financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period is presented in

Note 36.

2021 2020

HK$ &t HKS$ &t
7,442,120 6,865,845
7,442,120 6,865,845
22,647,882 21,178,806
102,831,920 27,745,760
880,961,959 398,411,186
1,006,441,761 447,335,752
1,013,883,881 454,201,597

REXREEANE/ TANAREED RF
HIBBIEES6



17. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

FEYERF ~ FA{TRRFI R Z S
Accounts Receivable FEURBRFR
Other Receivables Hith FEULBR X
Prepayments FE(TERFX

Rental and Sundry Deposits HE RIS

Less: Non-current Portion

L IEREDERD

Current Portion

AENERD

Accounts receivable and other receivables are net of
loss allowance. The ageing analysis of the accounts
receivable at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

REHA
@HARE —E A
BH—EAZE=EA
BPENR=EAETER
) =2
BHRN—F

Current

Less than One Month Past Due

One to Three Months Past Due

More than Three Months but not
more than One Year Past Due

More than One Year Past Due

Loss allowance recognized in respect of accounts
receivable is as follows:

Balance as at 30 June 6 B30 Hi&Es

2021 2020

HKS$ #&JT HK$ &t
5,732,019 9,373,159
420,662 546,555
16,355,373 14,086,977
963,944 747,504
23,471,998 24,754,195
(3,192,620) (1,229,087)
20,279,378 23,525,108

YRR L EMBUIRAENRERERE
RE&EE BNBYBORSRAIRER D0 T ¢

2021 2020
HK$ &t HK$ T
3,075,453 6,719,776
808,745 986,689
846,259 23,898
691,244 1,307,642
310,318 335,154
5,732,019 9,373,159
FEWIRAZ EERRIREBEHEUT
2021 2020
HK$ &t HK$ &t
3,987,184 3,987,184
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17. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (continued)

BUARR - RHERREEE (&)

An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e. by service type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, the University
would consider to write off the accounts receivable
if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

The information below is about the credit risk
exposure on the accounts receivable using a

provision matrix:

As at 30 June 2021

K& HFARBREETREDINETE
FHERER - BEXDERURB AN
BUBFHBKRFE - ZETE RS EN
BER BERELNBXAUSNHEEB
TEFE B RRREBENGETRE -
—RIME > YRR BHREE —FLAEA
RIERRF] - RESEETLUME -

FAEBEEES ENERERNEEARE
BRI -

720216 A30H

Past Due iBHH

More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than 1 Year Over 1
Current Month 1 to 3 Months EN=@EAB18 Year Total
XREE EN—EA —EBE=EH IRI—F ERR—% #Et
Expected Credit 0% 0% 0% 0% 93% 41%
Loss Rate
FEHER(E AL ER
Gross Carrying 3,075,453 808,745 846,259 691,244 4,297,502 9,719,203
Amount (HK$)
BRMEARE (BTT)

Expected Credit - -
Losses (HK$)
FEHRZ 1B (BTT)

- - 3,987,184 3,987,184



17. Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (continued)

AR ~ RiTERREEEE (&)

As at 30 June 2020 120206 H30H
Past Due i&Hj
More than 3
Months but not
more than 1
Less than 1 Year Over 1
Current Month 1 to 3 Months ER=EHB{E Year Total
KREE EN—EAR —EBEE=EA IR ERR—% s
Expected Credit 0% 0% 0% 0% 92% 30%
Loss Rate
FEER(E X
Gross Carrying 6,719,776 986,689 23,898 1,307,642 4,322,338 13,360,343
Amount (HK$)
ERE#R{E ()

Expected Credit - -
Losses (HK$)
TEHRZ 1B (Bn)

Deposits and other receivables mainly represented
rental deposits, utility deposits and sundry debtors.
Where applicable, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the
probability of default of comparable companies with
published credit ratings. As at 30 June 2021, the
University assessed the impact of loss allowance
for impairment of deposits and other receivables
was insignificant.

None of the above deposits and other receivables is
either past due or impaired and there was no recent
history of default.

- - 3,987,184 3,987,184

ReLEMBYHIREREEERS « KE
ERELBEREZA - WEH > AI2FERQ
fiE SRR AR ZEQ AT B DUELERR -
R BT LUETTREDHT ° 12202146 530
B REEFHREMEMEBYRIAZERER
BBRAEK -

itz < N L FE UK TE BE 4R 28 B AR SR E
PSGUR RIS N >
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18. Time Deposits and Cash and Cash Equivalents

THEMRRBERREFEY

(@) Time Deposits

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but
less than One Year

Classified as Current Assets

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of less than Three Months
Classified as Current Assets-
Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Note 18 (b))

Total

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of less than Three Months (Note 18 (a))

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) EHATFFX

FEHERX=EA
BREiR—FEREFR
IRREEE

FREEESER=EA
BI5E BBTERR
B RENEE-RER
REEEM(KIEE18(b))

&t

(b) RERIBEEEY

REEIRREN=ER
BEHBTFFA(FdaE18(a))

RERIRITHEER

RERBEFEY

2021
HK$ &t

1,085,346,774

11,487,121

2020
HK$ &t

1,020,031,677

378,535,483

1,096,833,895

1,398,567,160

11,487,121 378,535,483
10,580,959 9,716,682
22,068,080 388,252,165




19. Accounts Payable and Accruals

BAERRRTRAIRE R

Accounts Payable FE{TBRFR
Accruals and Provisions TEieE R K e
Retentions Payable e 2

and Deposits Received REUEuR®
Contract Liabilities (Note 19 (a)) ERBRABIEE9(a))
Amount Due to UGC wRHEE
Note 19 (a) Ff5E19(a)
Contract Liabilities BMRE

Tuition Fees B8

Hostel Fees BE

Graduation Deposits FXRMIBEE

Other Course Fees HithZR 2 &R

Contract liabilities include tuition fees, hostel fees,
graduation deposit and other course fees received
in advance from students. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the increase in
short-term advances received from students at the
end of the year in relation to the tuition fees. The
decrease in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly
due to the decrease in short-term advances received
from students at the end of the year in relation to the
tuition fees.

2021 2020

HKS$ AT HK$ &t

11,643,556 13,928,067

30,596,073 42,094,300

18,306,366 17,609,832

106,926,952 53,132,146

42,165,266 41,824,645

209,638,213 168,588,990

As at1 July 2019

2021 2020 $22019F7B1H

HK$ 37T HK$ 57T HK$ &7t
100,938,199 48,437,227 54,210,308
1,873,109 1,383,750 2,489,397
3,246,904 2,923,300 2,965,500
868,740 387,869 165,604
106,926,952 53,132,146 59,830,809

BHNEEERRAKELENEE BE  £X%
HERSLEMREER - 2021FNE0E
ERMLDERHRNFEREECERAWESE
IR - 2020FMENEBERD T EEM
RERBEZERAWBERIRRD -
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20. Provision for Employee Benefits

& B i e
Staff Costs: BB A
Salaries and Wages FearIE
Gratuities w2
Other Employee Benefits HihfEEEF
Retirement Benefit RIRTEFIETEIAERR

Scheme Contributions

Payable: FE{TRBBR :
Within One Year —FRN
After One Year —FEDIE

21. Loan - Secured

B - 5iER

As at 30 June 2021, the outstanding Loan balance
would be repayable as follows:

Repayable: S -

Within One Year —5FA

More than One Year, but not —FEMFNR
exceeding Two Years

More than Two Years, but not MEELFA
exceeding Five Years

After Five Years RFLIE
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2021 2020
HK$ &t HKS$ &t
29,100,134 26,868,964
42,315,754 40,995,439
204,206 208,313
59,561 38,621
71,679,655 68,111,337
60,142,325 57,173,575
11,537,330 10,937,762
71,679,655 68,111,337

20216 A 30 @ RMEEMEFVEN R DT
A

2021 2020
HK$ &t HKS$ &7t
6,857,834 -

20,573,492 20,573,502

- 6,857,824

27,431,326 27,431,326

27,431,326 27,431,326




21. Loan - Secured (continued)

8% - AHEA (F)

For the purpose of constructing a permanent
premises for the Community College for the
provision of self-financed sub-degree programmes,
the University obtained an interest free loan of
HK$205.7 million (“the Loan”), repayable in 10 equal
annual instalments, from the Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“the Lender”) in 2002. In September
2009, the repayment period of the Loan was
extended to 20 years. Pursuant to the extension, the
first 10 years remained interest free, and thereafter,
a “no-gain-no-loss” (“NGNL”) interest rate to be
determined by the Lender annually will be charged
on the outstanding Loan amount. The NGNL interest
rate for 2021 was ranged from 1.106% to 1.270%
(2020: 1.106% to 1.231%) per annum.

In consideration of the Loan, all incomes generated
from the courses for which the Loan was granted
have been charged to the Lender by way of a first
fixed charge. As a further security to the Loan, by
way of a first floating charge, all assets and rights,
both present and future, of the University have been
assigned to the Lender.

In April 2020, the University accepted the lender’s
offer of an interest free deferral of loan repayment for
two years, under which, the original due date of the
17th instalment will be postponed from 2 April 2021
to 2 April 2023. As a result, no amount is repayable
within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, the outstanding Loan balance
amounted to HK$27.4 million (2020: HK$27.4
million).

RYBEMHEERVAKARSKAPRSE L2
NUTHEERERE » KRENR200241%
A RER ( "BRA" ) WE2. 057
BITREER ("7 ) » MOEFIE
& o IN20094F9R » ZEFNERBLERE
206 - BRHAERE - H10EMKRARE » H
% BECERGER  KREBAZNFE A
FRBGEHERAR " REAE . NEANA
TE o 20214 » Z T ARAE 5 MAIERNR
FEBT1.106%F1. 270% 2 (2020 : 1.106%
Z1.231%) o

RYDBER  REBAELEZXKAREANE
BENREMMBAWA @ UE—BEEERTN
EFAETRA - 5 REFFBRELKRK
MEERERER  BHLUE T EBEF PR
MEA -

2020647 » REEZTERARBMN
R BEMMEFERL  REZRH > $
178V E R B 2021642 A #EEE 2023
FAH28 - Wt - REE—FANEFEEE
{AIFRIA °

R2021E6830H » KEENER A2, 7408
T (2020 @ 2, 7408E7T)
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23. Deferred Capital Fund

Balance as at 1.7.2019
#EER

Capital Fund Earned
(Note 22)

BENEAES
(F5E22)

Capital Fund Released
BHEAES

Balance as at 30.6.2020
HEER

Balance as at 1.7.2020
#EER

Capital Fund Earned
(Note 22)

BEEVE A B £ MEE
(FfF5¥22)

Capital Fund Released
BHEAES

Balance as at 30.6.2021
#EER

Capital
Grants and
AA & | Block
Earmarke Grants Allocation Campus
e RS HiENE Development
Block MEHIER Donations
Grants Research Others R REBR Total
BREWGHE i Hitb BREX EEN fEEt
HKS$ &t HKS$ &t HK$ #&iT HK$ &t HK$ #&t HKS$ &t
37,871,790 - 39,199 598,442,437 174,727,036 811,080,462
23,673,065 - 110,280 46,793,110 - 70,576,455
(17,173,697) - (44,453) (44,906,436) (7,862,391) (69,986,977)
44,371,158 - 105,026 600,329,111 166,864,645 811,669,940
44,371,158 - 105,026 600,329,111 166,864,645 811,669,940
10,238,341 61,207 99,600 61,702,206 15,865,092 87,966,446
(14,867,511) (12,241) (64,373) (35,865,453) (5,788,891) (56,598,469)
39,741,988 48,966 140,253 626,165,864 176,940,846 843,037,917
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24. Remuneration of the Higher Paid Staff

B = U & M
The numbers of the higher paid staff falling in the DR TR EEEEHINA B NE = 3
following bands of annual equivalent remuneration BE A& A :
were:

HK$ &t 2021 2020
1,800,001 - 1,950,000 16 16
1,950,001 - 2,100,000 17 19
2,100,001 - 2,250,000 6 9
2,250,001 - 2,400,000 3 -
2,400,001 - 2,550,000 4 5
2,550,001 - 2,700,000 - 1
2,700,001 - 2,850,000 - -
2,850,001 - 3,000,000 2 3
3,000,001 - 3,150,000 1 1

3,150,001 - 3,300,000 - -
3,300,001 - 3,450,000 - -

3,450,001 - 3,600,000 1 1
3,600,001 - 3,750,000 - -
3,750,001 - 3,900,000 - 1

3,900,001 - 4,050,000 - -
4,050,001 - 4,200,000 - -
4,200,001 - 4,350,000 - -
4,350,001 - 4,500,000 - -
4,500,001 - 4,650,000 - -
4,650,001 - 4,800,000 1 -
4,800,001 - 4,950,000 - -
4,950,001 - 5,100,000 - -
5,100,001 - 5,250,000 - -
5,250,001 - 5,400,000 - -
5,400,001 - 5,550,000 - -
5,550,001 - 5,700,000 1 1

52 57




25. Matching Grants and Matched Donations Movement Analysis

Ec¥itiBh € R C B RREES 2

Balance as at 1 July

Income
Donations/Grants
Interest and Investment

Income

Expenditure

Teaching and Research
Enhancement

Internationalization and
Student Exchange
Activities

Scholarships & Prizes

Bursaries

Student Development

Others

Balance as at 30 June
(Note)

Note: No donation, that could be matched, was received for
self-financing operations since the extension of the Matching
Grant Scheme to non-UGC-funded activities in August 2012.
As the UGC-funded operations of the University were at
degree or above level, no expenditures were incurred for the
activities of sub-degree level. The balance has not included
the accumulated net unrealized gain on investments of
HK$6.04 million (2019/20: accumulated net unrealized loss
HK$0.46 million) as it is not a free balance at the disposal of

the University.

781 B#&ER

A
BN E

FERIBEWA

X

HEB R TR

FERBEZR

EEN

BEERER

B2z
BERRE
HAth

6 530 B#LER
(BfEE)

2021 2020
UGC-funded Operations UGC-funded Operations
BESEBEE BESEREE

Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
EcEifiBhE CEEHBEX REwWHbE SERHEEXR
HK$ &7t HK$ &t HK$ &t HK$ #EiT
279,942,279 256,940,698 212,952,173 183,840,465
- - 72,847,430 85,694,861

979,867 3,034,138 2,067,194 4,193,859
280,922,146 259,974,836 287,866,797 273,729,185
2,562,408 5,059,042 1,755,877 7,031,765
(12,000) 30,311 258,000 (5,000)
9,188,723 998,789 5,825,870 7,729,926

- 230,548 - 320,866

1,132,068 751,970 6,643 1,365,807
180,479 159,564 78,128 345,123
13,051,678 7,230,224 7,924,518 16,788,487
267,870,468 252,744,612 279,942,279 256,940,698
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26. Research Matching Grants and Matched Donations/Research Grants/

Research Contracts Movement Analysis

MR € Rk EERE R/ M £/MASHIEE 7

2021 2020
UGC-funded Operations UGC-funded Operations
BETEHEE HESEHEE
Matched Matched
Donations/ Donations/

Research Grants/

Research Grants/

Research Research
Research Contracts Research Contracts
Matching ERARE B/ Matching EREEBER/
Grants R E/ Grants WM&/
[k ES HEEH BECEifB & MEEH
HK$ &t HK$ &t HKS$ &t HK$ &t
Balanceasat1July 781 B#&ER 57,182,478 58,339,884 - -
Income WA
Donations/Research BRM R &/ 4,204,547 8,464,119 59,570,605 69,141,210
Grants/Research MEEHIUWA
Contracts Received
Interest Income F BT A 472,520 488,948 607,338 496,745
4,677,067 8,953,067 60,177,943 69,637,955
Expenditure T H
Research Project(s) MEIER 7,341,092 6,290,438 2,609,218 10,714,507
Research Equipment 7 Estt 274,969 690,259 2,140 78,270
Setting up of ML T ER B 16,863 16,863 - -
Research Facilities
Research Activities BAMRIEED 44,575 514,709 - 169,991
for Students
Others Hith 130,567 130,586 384,107 335,303
7,808,066 7,642,855 2,995,465 11,298,071
Unspent Balance as
at 30 June
Balance as at 6 530 H#&ER 54,051,479 59,650,096 57,182,478 58,339,884

30 June

Note: No donation / research grant / research contract, that
could be matched, was received for self-financing operation
during the year.

sk - RAFE  RELRBUIIEARNEELRS
ERA AT BB R/ I S MBI & /T840 -



27. Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students (“the Scheme”)

B LBL ittt SR BIECHEIE ( "5tE7 )

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Scheme. In accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Scheme, the details of the
matching grants, matched donations of the Scheme
and their related expenditure are summarized as
follows:

REEETERNATERE - 2R

ELRE7

st
BER RH#EDE CEEHBANEMNE

Bz MR

2021

Matching Matched
Grants Donations

e CEERHANK

2020

Matching Matched
Grants Donations

e SERBER

HK$ &t HKS$ &t

HK$ &t HKS$ &t

Balance as at 1 July 7B1 Bi&ER 55,210 - 63,226 -
Net Amount Received/ SUW/GRE)FFHIE
(Refunded)
Grants Refunded REFEENE (55,210) - - -
Interest/Investment Income FEAREWA - - 1,284 -
(55,210) ; 1,284 -
Expenditure T H
Programme Costs SERENRR A - - 9,300 -
- - 9,300 -
Balance as at 30 June 6 530 BikER - - 55,210 -
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28. Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

S FBRERINER

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the income and expenditure of the

&BhEtEl (“HEBNETE" )

Subsidy Scheme are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2019
Net Amount Received
Grants Received
Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2020
Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2021

201957 A1 Bf&ER
BUFHFIR
SN E
REWHENE
FEARERA
%

EENRLA

202046 A30 BitER

202047 A1 Bf&ER
EUBUFMIR
SN E

REHE)E
FEARERA

3

EENRLA

2021 F£6 A30 BitER

REEETEFEINAERNE - ZRED
FTEIRIREEE R - L EBYET 82 WA NS H

Wi T ¢

Lingnan
University
ERAE
HK$ T

1,922,544

2,447,085
(1,301,700)
34,206

1,179,591

1,818,250

1,818,250
1,283,885

1,283,885

1,712,527
(1,328,546)
12,150

396,131

91,610

91,610

1,588,406

Lingnan Institute of

Further Education

AR Total
FEEEEMKR st
HK$ &7t HKS$ &t
109,425 2,031,969
200,000 2,647,085
(113,915) (1,415,615)
4,347 38,553
90,432 1,270,023
(4,125) 1,814,125
(4,125) 1,814,125
203,982 1,487,867
203,982 1,487,867
200,000 1,912,527
(200,000) (1,528,546)
1,381 13,531
1,381 397,512

- 91,610

- 91,610

205,363 1,793,769




29. Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for
Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

KEARBEELEE T

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme, the
details of the income and expenditure of the Subsidy

B RZARERETE ( "EBEtE” )

RECEITESIMNMERNS - RRER
APEINMEER - ILEBIFT 82 WA NS
BB

Scheme are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2019

201957 A1 B#&ER

Net Amount Received BWEFIE
Grants Received =Yg T e
Grants Refunded BEw#EEE
Interest/Investment Income FBARE WA

Expenditure 2
Programme Costs TEENR A

Balance as at 30 June 2020 202046 A30 Bi&ER

Balance as at 1 July 2020

202057 A1 B#&ER

Net Amount Received BWEFIE
Grants Received SuaEEE
Grants Refunded REEES
Interest/Investment Income FBARE WA

Expenditure 2
Programme Costs JEENRA

Balance as at 30 June 2021 2021 F£6 B30 BitER

Lingnan Further Education
University SEE AR Total
ERAR FHEEE SR #ast
HK$ &7 HK$ &t HK$ &
61,662 163,067 224,729
820,513 200,000 1,020,513
(1,890) (164,629) (166,519)
10,867 4,964 15,831
829,490 40,335 869,825
236,509 (1,025) 235,484
236,509 (1,025) 235,484
654,643 204,427 859,070
654,643 204,427 859,070
821,275 200,000 1,021,275
(656,316) (200,000) (856,316)
6,176 1,382 7,558
171,135 1,382 172,517
205,809 1,031,587

825,778
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30. Non-Means-tested Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for

Post-secondary Students (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

RARBEEELRE "B,

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the income and expenditure of the
Subsidy Scheme are summarized as follows:

Balance as at 1 July 2019

Net Amount Received

Grants Received

Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2020
Net Amount Received
Grants Received

Grants Refunded
Interest/Investment Income

Expenditure

Programme Costs

Balance as at 30 June 2021

201947 B1 BH#&ER

EUHFIE

SN £

FEARERA

X

BN

20206 A30 B#tER

202047 B1 B#&eR
BURCSEFIE
EIEES

REHENE
FEARERA

%

TEENRLA

2021 6 B30 B#5ER

e -

KA

REEE

Lingnan
University
ERAE
HK$ #JT

567,328
3,949

571,277

322,050

322,050
249,227

249,227

389,679
(249,864)
2,590

142,405

8,400

8,400

383,232

EEhEtEl ( "EBETE" )

TTEBRIEIMPT ARG - ZRER
ATEIMIREEE R - L& BIFH &2 IMA K H
BT

Lingnan Institute of
Further Education

AR Total
FEEE8MR #aEt
HK$ &7t HKS$ &7t
200,000 767,328
3,001 6,950
203,001 774,278

- 322,050

- 322,050

203,001 452,228
203,001 452,228
200,000 589,679
(200,000) (449,864)
1,381 3,971
1,381 143,786

- 8,400

- 8,400

204,382 587,614




31. Non-Means-tested Mainland Experience Scheme (“the Subsidy Scheme”)

SABEES LB4 MR ERETEl ( "EBIETE )

RECETEWSINMAMERGE - HRBRER
STEIMIRERE R » L EBY AT &2 WA K
Wi -

The University has complied with all the requirements
of the Subsidy Scheme. In accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Subsidy Scheme,
the details of the income and expenditure of the

Subsidy Scheme are summarized as follows:

Lingnan Institute of

Lingnan Further Education
University SEE AR Total
SRR B2 #Et
HKS$ &t HK$ 37T HKS$ &It
Balance as at 1 July 2019 201957 B1 HikEs - - -
Net Amount Received BIRFFIE
Grants Received [SEVEEENES 212,466 75,000 287,466
Interest/Investment Income FIEAZEUWA 2,202 1,572 3,774
214,668 76,572 291,240
Expenditure 2
Programme Costs JEENRA 100,050 - 100,050
100,050 - 100,050
Balance as at 30 June 2020 20206 A30 HiLER 114,618 76,572 191,190
Balance as at 1 July 2020 202047 B1 B#58s 114,618 76,572 191,190
Net Amount Received SIS FRIE
Grants Received [=EEENES 150,000 111,642 261,642
Grants Refunded REEENE (114,911) (75,000) (189,911)
Interest/Investment Income FIEAREUWA 905 611 1,516
35,994 37,253 73,247
Expenditure 2
Programme Costs JEENR A 92,700 - 92,700
92,700 - 92,700
Balance as at 30 June 2021 2021 F6 B30 HiLER 57,912 113,825 171,737
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32. Note to the Statement of Cash Flows
IRERERMET

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

At 1 July 2020 202047 B1 BiEER

Changes from Financing MERSMEMNEE
Cash Flows
Interest Expense FEXZH
Portion of Lease Payment HAEER
Other Changes HhiEsp
Interest paid classified as FIABERSRERN
Operating Cash Flows FES&ZT
Changes from Operating Cash Flows & EIR®RERVEE)
At 30 June 2021 2021 6 B30 A#&ER

At 1 July 2019 201947 B1 B#&ER

Changes from Financing AMERSREMEE)
Cash Flows
Repayment of Loan HEEX
Interest Expense FBEXZH
Portion of Lease Payment HARERT
Lease Modification HEEE
Interest Paid FEZ A
Other Changes Ethiggh
Interest Expense MEXZH
Interest paid classified as JIAEERSREN
Operating Cash Flows FBEXZ A
Changes from Operating Cash Flows & EIR&/RERVEE)
At 30 June 2020 20206 B30 B#&ER

(a) HAEEHMELNEBEHIKE

Accounts

Payable and

Lease Accruals

Loan-Secured Liabilities EfTERIE
EF-HEH HERE FIRER
HKS$ &t HKS$ &It HK$ &t
27,431,326 666,081 168,588,990
- 6,411 -

- (317,589) -

- (6,411) -

- - 41,049,223
27,431,326 348,492 209,638,213
34,289,160 348,492 154,484,625
(6,857,834) - -
- 4,443 -

- (319,557) -

- 637,146 -

- - (410,017)

- - 303,006

- (4,443) -

- - 14,211,376
27,431,326 666,081 168,588,990




32. Note to the Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BERERME (18)

(b) Total Cash Outflow for Leases (b) MEMNBEERS RS

The total cash outflow for leases included in the HENARESRETAERESREERNT
statement of cash flows is as follows:

2021 2020
HK$ &t HK$ &t
Within Operating Activites EEEE 555,154 611,993
Within Financing Activites R EED 317,589 319,557
872,743 931,550
33. Capital Commitments
BARKIE

2021 2020
HK$ &7t HK$ #&JT
Works contracted, but not completed TREEENERTEL 62,333,000 45,740,000
The capital commitments represent the estimated AN ZEEEREMEEBERXEZT
remaining balance of the contract sum for the works BREEBFARBXREEAMARER TS T

of the capital and AA&I projects not yet certified EEHIEREE -

completed at the end of the reporting period.
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34.
EMIBS%E

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

As at 30 June 2021

Financial Assets

EHMEE

Equity Investments Designated
at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Financial Assets at Fair Value

through Profit or Loss

Financial Assets included in
Accounts Receivable,

Prepayments and Deposits

Time Deposits with Original
Maturity of more than Three
Months but less than One
Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

EBERBLASEE
STAZEIEE
ZEDRE

DlasfEfEst Al
XRNEMEE

ETAFEURERTR ~ T8
FERF IR ERY
TREE

REIHAE R =18

FHBsEH—EH
EHREE

RERBFELFEY

RExEER SRR ITEMNKEE

(I
7202146 830H
Financial Financial
Assets at Fair Assets at
Value through Fair Value
Profitor  through Other Financial
Loss - Held for Comprehensive Assets at
Trading Income Amortized
Uan@EE UAREE Cost
sTARZ & A LU s R AR
MEMmEE - ZERSRZ StEZER
BEEHE SHEE a5
HKS$ BT HKS$ #&T HK$ &It
- 7,442,120 -
1,006,441,761 - -
- - 7,116,625

1,085,346,774

22,068,080

Total
#BET

HKS$ #it

7,442,120

1,006,441,761

7,116,625

1,085,346,774

22,068,080

1,006,441,761

7,442,120

1,114,531,479

2,128,415,360




34. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

EMIESE (@)

As at 30 June 2021

Financial Liabilities

EMEE

Secured Loan

Lease Liabilities

Financial Liabilities included in

Accounts Payable and Accruals

MR2021%F6830H

BTG

HERE

ETARBABRFRR TR
ERNEMER

Financial Liabilities at
Amortized Cost

LU SR At EZ
EHER

HK$ #&iT

27,431,326
348,492
102,711,261

130,491,079
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34. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

EMIESE ()

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Assets

EMEE

Equity Investments
Designated at Fair Value
through Other

Comprehensive Income

Financial Assets at Fair
Value through Profit or
Loss

Financial Assets included in
Accounts Receivable,
Prepayments and

Deposits

Time Deposits with Original
Maturity of more than
Three Months but less

than One Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents

82

BERLASEE
STAZENEE
ZERRE

HAsEER AL
SXENEMEE

ETAREUERSR ~ FAMYS
RMRIE SR ER
BE

REEERK =M@
RBRENR—F8Y
EHATFRR

RERBFELFEY

Financial Assets

7202066 A30H

Financial Assets

at Fair Value at Fair Value Financial
through Profit or through Other Assets at
Loss - Held for Comprehensive Amortized
Trading Income Cost
DARBESA UAREBEEA LAH 85 P A

WxRAERM ZEBERZ SEZER Total

BE-HIEEE ETHMEE BE #ast

HKS$ #&TT HKS$ &It HKS$ &t HKS$ #JT

- 6,865,845 - 6,865,845

447,335,752 - - 447,335,752

- - 10,667,218 10,667,218

- - 1,020,031,677 1,020,031,677

- - 388,252,165 388,252,165

447,335,752 6,865,845 1,418,951,060 1,873,152,657




34. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

EMTIESHFE (i)

As at 30 June 2020

Financial Liabilities

7202086 830H

EHMEE
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
LR At EZERBE
HK$ &t
Secured Loan BIEWEF 27,431,326
Lease Liabilities HEa® 666,081
Financial Liabilities included in ST AT IR R TR 115,456,844

Accounts Payable and Accruals BRNSRER

143,554,251

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

B EEEIR B IR RBUR

The University’s principal financial instruments
comprise secured loan, cash and time deposits, unit
trusts and equity investments. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
University’s operations. The University has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts
receivable and payable, which arise directly from
its operations. The University does not issue any
financial instruments and derivatives. In addition,
the University does not hold any derivatives.

The University is exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (including interest rate risk,
currency risk, and equity price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk in the normal course of activities.
The Council reviewed and approved policies
for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below:

ARENTEZSH I ABEEERER B
SREMER  BUGHESRERKRE -
ELEHTANTIZERERARENEE

B8 ARBHESRSMEEREE
EMBENEERRETEREL  WBKEK
BRIRAREF - ARELRBITEM SR LOT
£TE - RILZ5  ARBARFHEMT
£TH-

AREREEBEPALSIANEIZSHEA
B sHETSEEAR (BREMNXER S8
fREEEERRR) ~ EERRNIREMLE
R o REGHS MEOE T ILBUER LIS ATl
BIARR
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEREZERERBER (1)

Market Risks
(i) Interest Rate Risk

The University’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rate relates primarily to the
University’s time deposits in banks and secured loan
from the Government. The deposits in banks earned
interests at fixed rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between 7 days to 365 days
depending on the cash flow requirements of the
University. The interest rate and terms of repayment
of the secured loan are disclosed in Note 21 to the
financial statements. The risk of changes in market
interest rates are not expected to have a significant
impact on the results of the University as the time
deposits are at fixed rates and other cash and bank
balances are kept in current account. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.

Interest Rate Profile

The following table details the interest rates analysis
for evaluation of the interest rate risk:

TR

(1) FU= Ja fez

AREBEANH BN RBLEARERKREAR
REMNBITEMEANBEFRNOBUTER
HERERNERE @ RUIMESER  &H
NFEREZBARATOARZE - MBERE
RNFIREE LN S B ER Y HRER M
2968 - AESFRANXREENMAMRE
FRITEBRFERRERIKRS - Z8HHH XK
BILHNARENY BRI TARBERE
£ BARRMESREDT

DIES

TR KRB RENRER A

2020

Annual Effective
Interest Rate

BEEFFE BEEFRZER
% BHE HKS$ #7T % BHE HK$ &It
Financial Assets EHEE
Fixed Rate Financial EEFZXREMEE
Assets
- Time Deposits with - REIEA A %S 0.10% to 0.86% 1,096,833,895 0.10% to 2.40% 1,398,567,160
Original Maturity of —FHEHIER -
less than One Year (FftEE18(a)) 1,096,833,895 1,398,567,160
(Note 18 (a)) -
Financial Liabilities ~—~ £mME&
No-gain-no-loss Rate TR EFI X
Financial Liabilities tHBE
- Secured Loan - BIEEF 1.106% to 1.270% 27,431,326 1.106% t0 1.231% 27,431,326
(Note 21) (Bd5E21)

Annual Effective
Interest Rate

27,431,326 27,431,326



35.
MBEEEEBERBER (1)

Market Risks (continued)
(i) Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The University’s currency risk arises mainly from
the accounts payable, receivable, time-deposits in
banks, equity investments and financial assets at
fair value denominated in foreign currencies. The
management conducted periodical review of the
currency risk exposure and would consider currency
hedging should the need arise.

Significant carrying amounts of the University’s
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at 30 June were analysed in the
table below:

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

miEER (&)
(i7) EH/E

ST ANAREERRRNES A EWE
51 B B 52 28 41 T 2 B0 T 2 2 MO L IR B 2 55
AR - ARBHENERT RN
f ~ BURERR ~ RAT RS AREER
RRERSAUEE - TREEHRRHK
FHRAREE BEHRTEREUEH
25 -

MR6B30RK » ARBEEMINESREEN
BESMITR

Financial Assets Financial Liabilities

EREE =L
2021 2020 2021 2020
Currency F<iicd HK$’ m HK$' m HK$’ m HK$’ m
BEAT BEAT BHEAT BEAT
United States Dollar E5T 13.6 11.0 0.3 1.0
13.6 11.0 0.3 1.0

Sensitivity analysis on fluctuation
currencies is not disclosed due to the HK-US
dollar peg and
foreign currencies, the Council anticipated that the
fluctuation in other foreign currencies will have no
significant impact on the financial position of the
University.

of foreign

insignificant holding on other

MR BITEEITTHE - MEMINEEERE
ENFEEMY  EZSTAMIMNEERAK
BHARENYBIRRNEERTE  BURE
FAE At EPE RZ B BURE DT
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEMEERERER (1)

Market Risks (continued)
(iii) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of change
in equity market prices. The University is exposed
to equity price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities and unit trust fund, which represents
the potential loss of the investments the University
might suffer through holding market position in
the face of price movement. The
Sub-committee performs periodic evaluation of the
investment portfolio in order to minimize the risk
associated with the investments whilst continuing
to follow the investment objectives.

Investment

As at 30 June 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10% in these investment’s fair
value, with all other variables held constant, would
increase the University’s surplus by HK$100.6
million (2020: HK$44.7 million).

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation. The major
exposures to credit risk of the University’s financial
assets, which comprise accounts receivable, other
receivables, time deposits and cash and bank
balances, arise from default of the counterparty, with
the maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of these financial assets at the end of the reporting
period. Time deposits and bank balances are placed
in various reputable financial institutions and there is
no concentration of credit risk. Accounts receivable
include amounts receivable from students, course-
collaborative partners, government agencies and
others. The majority of the students will settle the
fees payable when they become due or after the
receipt of the government grants, loans and/or

hiEmkE (1)
(iii) AR RE1E1% /@ fez

TR TAEMNAREEBERETSERES
MEEFEEN AR RRERRE - AKRZ2
RENLEHESFLBAGHRESS NREE
BEK  RAARERKESIBEEEE -
RENIZESEERFEREAS  BE
RERRMEERBRERR -

202168308 » BEAFENREARE
BB A10%  HMRERE  AKEHN
BRI EIEINT. 00642787t (2020 : 4, 4708
HBIT) o

EEmE

R ITREAP—SABTEEMBRM
THBERNEAR BAEERAR - R
REERRMNARESHEE @ BREBUK
;O BEABUWEIRSR « EMER  UREE R
RITH R - BRDBANRZH FHERSIZ
MEARRFRERERRBXGEEHSHE
ENKREEE ERFREBRITERD B
FRRZMBESENEMEE  EERR
WARER - BUERARBERE aFRE
IREE ~ BURFERPI R At AERIRER - REB4
BARSENKIEMET - SUE BT 8D
& ERE/RAREBSHFES B RN -
EERRED  HEMEKEATEZBEER
BBA o BUIRRIRE 2 473k & E H AR H 4
EEEERUIBRESERR -



35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEEEERERBR (1)

Credit Risks (continued)

the University’s bursaries, credit risk of which is
minimal. Other receivables mainly include sundry
debtors. The ageing analysis of debtors is prepared
periodically for management review to minimize the
credit risk.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
University’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end
staging classification. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 30 June 2021

FELSBRTR"

Accounts Receivable®

Financial Assets Included in Other
Receivables, Prepayments and

Deposits
- Normal** EE*
- Doubtful** REE*

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but

less than One Year

Not Yet Past Due K@ HB
Cash and Cash Equivalents Ha KBRS EY
Not Yet Past Due FKiEHH

EEEE (1)

R BB RAF A R & 73

TRAERBEERRZEHERARKREER
Bk ZERREZREGHER (RIFEA
ERBRRBEAVDERAIBZ HEAAER)
REREREIDEAHE - T2INEER
MHEEEZIREMBE -

ST AE MRS ~ TRA
RREEENEMEE

REEIERX=ERERE
R—FREEEFR

202146 830H
Lifetime ECLs
12-month ECLs 2> HATEHA
1218 A 7858 EEEE
EERE Simplified
Stage 1 Approach Total
R okl #aEt
HK$ #&it HK$ &7t HK$ &7t
- 9,719,203 9,719,203
1,384,606 - 1,384,606
1,085,346,774 - 1,085,346,774
22,068,080 - 22,068,080
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35.

MBEMEEBERBR (1)

Credit Risks (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 30 June 2020

Accounts Receivable®

Financial Assets Included in Other
Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits
- Normal*™
- Doubtful™*

Time Deposits with Original Maturity
of more than Three Months but
less than One Year
Not Yet Past Due

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Not Yet Past Due

FEN R =R

ETAHHREULARTR ~ FRf
BRMREENEMEE

E
RE

REEERX=ERERE
R—FREHFR

RiEHA

RERBFEFEY
RiEHA

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

SRR @

RARERFERERE D (B)

7202046 H30H
Lifetime ECLs
12-month ECLs 2HFEH
128 B FAH E8FA
EEBR Simplified
Stage 1 Approach
BEEF1 [iE(7
HK$ 7T HK$ &7t
- 13,360,343
1,294,059 -

1,020,031,677

388,252,165

Total
et

HKS$ #it

13,360,343

1,294,059

1,020,031,677

388,252,165



35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEMEERERER (1)

Credit Risk (continued) EEmkE (1)
* For accounts receivable to which the University * O REBZEKESERSEEE  ERE
applies the simplified approach for impairment, BB BRI IEE1 74 EE -

information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in notes 17.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included HEAEMEKEIE ENREBERZEZ
in prepayments, other receivables and other THEENGEEER®SER 'TEE ) Bt
assets is considered to be “normal” when they are ELRMEERBHELTHEEREREEY
not past due and there is no information indicating STHEAENEER B EREN - T8I -
that the financial assets had a significant increase SREENGEEEREGER "Rk,

in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Liquidity Risk TRE R PR

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available SRHE BN RECHESESHELFT
in meeting obligations associated with financial SIBERE - DARERRE - ARZBERE
liabilities as they fall due. The University’s objective REHETESBEEM LB ERBIRFRER
is to maintain a balance between continuity of MNEELBRE  MEMERINEESE - N
funding and flexibility through use of secured loan RENLEEHBEAREE  SEEBEEEH
for its operations and development. The University’s MEEEMNERT KT » MmzKERLUENBE
investments are kept sufficiently liquid and the liquid FEEDUNTARNERESRENERE - KE
assets are maintained at a level which is considered @A BRERARENIRSRENE -

by the management to be adequate to meet the
needs of operations and the expected cash outflow
requirement. The liquidity of the University is closely
monitored by the Council on an ongoing basis.

The financial liabilities as at 30 June together with REeA30HMN R A EE MR EMNEE21 Tk EE
the anticipated interest payments over the entire N ESREEERFAAANTESTNR S EH
repayment period of the Government Loan as WIRAEFHH AT -

disclosed in Note 21 are analysed into relevant
maturity time bands based upon their contractual
maturity dates in the table below:
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

MBEMEIEBEREBR (1)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

mENERBE ()

2021 2020
HKS$ &7t HK$ AT
In less than One Year FER—F 102,758,046 115,633,633
In more than One Year but not more than ER—FRENR_-F 7,233,211 464,400
Two Years
In more than Two Years but not more than ER_FRER=F 7,319,118 7,188,225
Three Years
In more than Three Years but not more than RRZ=ZFBENRNE 7,032,023 7,111,551
Four Years
In more than Four Years but not more than ERINERERAESE 6,952,131 7,023,750
Five Years
In more than Five Years ERAE 70,000 6,947,893
131,364,529 144,369,452
36. Fair Value
AR fEE

As at 30 June 2021, the carrying amounts of
the University’s financial assets and liabilities
approximated to their fair values due to their short
term repayment nature, except for investments and
secured loan repayable after one year.

The fair value of the secured loan repayable after
one year has been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The University’s
own non-performance risk for the secured loan
repayable after one year as at 30 June 2021 was
assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amount
of the University’s secured loan repayable after one
year approximated to its fair value.

MRiIgEIRBERRC—FREBNERI
AREBNEGHEEABEBNEHEFAM
B HRMEENR2021F6 330 FEAARE
BT -

BREA - FREENERNAREBRE
RNV MEE - FIRREMEERR
FEERRMHTEHAMELHTE - 122027
FO6A30H  AREASHARERC—FR
BENMSERNABITRBETGR/AERK -
AREBNBER - FREEMEFKREE
HENREERSE -



36. Fair Value (continued)

NReEE (8)

Investments

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted price in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.

wnE

DanEEFESR T RRAREEDRG
DA

Bk HREENE

S EREBRDSERZ

B RTYB—RPAESHREZS
EENEBECOAEBALUER (IHHH
B) s (AMREERITE) 8% -

B =R
iﬁﬁ‘“ﬁ%T@i\;‘E% °

EEJ J\{Ejﬂf/xﬁﬁ E‘%Fﬁ

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B B=M HEt
HK$ 7T HK$ #ET HK$ T HK$ 7T
As at 30 June 2021 582021 F6 B30H
Financial Assets at Fair Value HAREBERARSE
through Profit or Loss RNEREE
- Listed Equity Investments - FERRE 22,647,882 - - 22,647,882
- Listed Investment Funds - tmEERE 102,831,920 - - 102,831,920
- Unlisted Investment Funds -EEHESRE - 880,961,959 - 880,961,959
Equity Investments Designated  $EE&LIARERE
at Fair Value through Other STAZENER
Comprehensive Income ZIERIRE
- Unlisted Equity Investments -ELEHRERRE - - 7,442,120 7,442,120
125,479,802 880,961,959 7,442,120 1,013,883,881
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36. Fair Value (continued)

NReEE (8)

Investments (continued) BE (%)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1 E_1R F=1 et
HK$ &t HKS$ &t HKS &t HK$ &t
As at 30 June 2020 $#22020F6 H30H
Financial Assets at Fair Value HDARBEETARS
through Profit or Loss RNERMEE
- Listed Equity Investments - ERERRE 21,178,806 - - 21,178,806
- Listed Investment Funds - tmEERE 27,745,760 - - 27,745,760
- Unlisted Investment Funds -ELEHESRE - 398,411,186 - 398,411,186
Equity Investments Designated  #8%E ALIAREE
at Fair Value through Other STAZENESR
Comprehensive Income ZIERRE
- Unlisted Equity Investments - EETHERERE - - 6,865,845 6,865,845
48,924,566 398,411,186 6,865,845 454,201,597
There was no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 BMAAREEIRFANE—K  B_HRKNE

and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the
reporting period.

The
investment in a limited partnership which is not
traded in active markets.
market data, it is difficult to analyse a range of
significant unobservable input of the financial
instrument under Level 3 of which its fair value is
estimated on the basis of the investee’s financial
position and results as well as is determined by
using going concern asset-based as valuation
technique.

level 3 financial instrument includes the

Without an observable

E;\&Zﬁaﬁfﬂzﬁ%}% °

FoZEREBRIETFNREERTHAE
EREAGBKRE BHRUFSRMTEREM
BHBER  HERANATHREAOAENEER
#HLUD T REAREEIKERKREARMN

MBRREFBELELUSECEREE
ERAGERMMERE -



37. Related Party Transactions
FAERARS

All transactions relating to purchases of goods
and services, capital projects as well as donations
involving organizations in which members of the
University’s Council may have an interest are
conducted during the normal course of business
and in accordance with the University’s financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures.

All members serve the University Council without
remuneration. Those members who are also
employees of the University received the aggregate
remunerations from their employment contracts as
follows:

Council Member Compensation RESREMHE
Salaries* e
Other Employee Benefits* Hith{g B

*

This sum has been included in the “Staff Costs
and Benefits” under the Expenditure heading in
Note 11.

Other than the employment contracts mentioned
above, the University has not entered into any
contract of significance for the provision of goods
and services with any Council member during the
year.

FrERRBEESER  R% - EEEBLBR
MERREREGHRENLEZFEATEAN R
BARNEE RS  HLULEXBEFLE
BREBEREBNTHERIY NMIEBRBEFET

FIERESKRENERNERESRESHM
WEEFFRE - —SREBGKERBFHER
BNEES - tfIREES S A FTUE A R B
AIAERE RS

2021 2020
HK$ &t HK$ T
16,567,688 18,967,760
4,194,770 4,590,944
20,762,458 23,558,704

*EZE f’/( BERTIAMGE I "8 E 5
/A RIRET -

BRY LAEE RN » RERAFEARILR
BREMRESKE R EMRAERNR
%%Eljﬁj(lﬂm’go
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38. Taxation

KIR

The University is an approved charitable institution
which is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax
under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap. 112).

39. Approval of the Financial Statements

AR TR

The financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Council on 11 October
2021.

AREBT —FTIECZEME  RIEEER
TG (BEIERIE112E ) EoSRERRGRT
BIIE -

RESR2021F10B8 1T BRERERZEA
BAFEIREK -
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